MINUTES
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY DRAINAGE BOARD MEETING 
TUESDAY, MAY 28, 2024 

The meeting was called to order at 11:45 a.m. by President Kramer at the Outagamie County Government Center.
 
Members Present:	Kramer, Nettekoven, Van Eperen, Van Asten, Vander Heiden
Others Present:	Nancy Christensen, Administrative Assistant;; Barton Chapman, State Drainage Engineer, DATCP; Greg Baneck, OC Depart of Land Conservation; Vanessa Wishart, Stafford & Rosenbaum Law LLC; Judge Mark McGinnis, Outagamie County Circuit Court #1; Jasmine Fields, Intern with Judge McGinnis; Kevin Schabo; Clark Schabo; Randy Schmidt; Kyle Schmidt; Brian Knaack; Larry Paltzer

Subject of Discussion:  Center Valley Drainage District –Status of Lateral 1 located on Clark Schabo property – 

Bart Chapman – DATCP records currently show Lateral 1 is legal drain.  No action was ever taken by the Drainage Board to remove that lateral from the legal drain and our records show that drain.

Randy Schmidt – In 2011 it was determined by the other drainage engineer that is wasn’t a legal drain and the drainage board didn’t do what they were suppose to do when Carl Anthony was in charge.  It clearly states it does not exist.  We have pictures, water don’t run up hill, never did, never will.   His son is currently farming that field.

Discussion went off to routing water different direction.  President Kramer stated the topic is Lateral 1 that was approved by BT2 in 2002, and August 29, 2003 approved by the Drainage Board.

Nettekoven referenced the June 14, 2011 written by Seth McClure, State Drainage Engineer, DATCP.  In summary, the letter refers to the alignment of the ditch which part does not exist.  Alignment is mentioned five times.  It references water does not go up hill.  At the end, McClure states the Drainage Board needs to “submit the modified drainage district map to DATCP that reflects the change to the drain’s alignment.”  Nettekoven spoke to the previous rental tenant of the property, he asked him about the ditch.  He stated there was a ditch there that needed to be worked around.  

Schmidt said there was a fence line through that area when he took over the land.  

Nettekoven stated last spring during inspections there are rocks piled up by Brian’s.  If the ditch was maintained and cleaned out there wouldn’t be water sitting in the field.  Why does DATCP have specifications for a ditch?

Clark Schabo stated Wayne DeBruin took out the fence line and oak tree.  There was no ditch there never,  The culver never should have been lowered.  

Nettekoven stated there is 30 feet of fall from the main to Center Valley Road.

Schmidt doesn’t have a problem taking the surface water but not after the pump is installed.  (iscussion was held on amount of water from installation of pump. 

Wishart stated Lateral 1 is a legal drain.  The plans and specs are certified.  Historic aerial photos from 1992 show a ditch/drain.  Alignment needs to be changed through DATCP.  Plans were approved in 2002 with Lateral 1. Correction needs to be made to remove/correct the portion that “runs up hill”.   If its not right, we need to take action to correct that.

Van Eperen stated a GIS soil survey map from 1972 shows the path of water goes to the north.  If you walk from the rock pile at a 45 degree angle to NE to the oak trees to the lane to a rotted culvert to rock a wall which is blocking a drain.  The water does not go straight north.  Why was money spent on rock being placed off Center Valley Road if this wasn’t a legal drain?  And there were grades being paid for by the drainage board.  The issue is this is a legal drain, how do we want to address the legal drain.  Going through the minutes I found a lot of grumbling from Mr. Schabo but I have not found any legal filing from Mr. Schabo or his mother-in-law before he owned the property that he submitted to have it removed.  We have to agree the alignment is wrong, the fact the legal drain is not being taken care, and the Drainage Board would not have spent money on stone if it wasn’t in the corridor.  

C. Schabo stated the stone was placed because the culvert was lowered and the state engineer said it had to be done.  

Wishart summarized the process of going through DATCP of changing the legal drain.

Kyle Schmidt asked who’s responsibility is the legal drain?  Nettekoven stated there is so much history.  Past boards were hesitant to do anything.  

Randy Schmidt stated he was told for years it wasn’t a legal drain by Land Conservation.

Greg Baneck stated he has been working with the Drainage Board since 2006.  This lateral has been a discussion.  Several map errors were found throughout various districts.  A meeting was held with the land owner, DATCP, Judge McGinnis, and myself on site and the Board was to take action.  Nothing was ever done by that Board officially.  Nettekoven asked if a ditch isn’t cleaned out for 75 years will it fill in?  Baneck responded absolutely.  

Kyle Schmidt asked if the legal drain is the responsibility of the drainage board, and if you are not putting in a ditch, why can’t the drainage board extend the tile?   Van Eperen asked where would you put the tile.  Nettekoven tiles added are more maintenance, ditches are less maintenance less costly.

C. Schabo stated but yet you allow farmers to install tile.  Nettekoven responded that farmers are responsible for the maintenance and installation for the tile on their property.

Discussion was held on maintenance of tile drains and what is required.

Brian Knaack asked what is the schedule for the maintenance of the ditch?  He is losing so many trees to water and the Ash bore.  Kramer stated the culvert replacement on Center Valley Road grant funding has been applied for.  The next move would be your ditch and then through Schabo’s.  

Kyle Schmidt asked if you are digging a ditch through a woods, how offer are you removing trees?  Kramer stated once trees are removed there is very little maintenance usually only where areas get silted in, some five years, some 20 years.  It depends on the soils.  

Kramer again stated the discussion is the Lateral 1 legal drain as approved in 2002.  We need to correct the alignment through DATCP and correct any discrepancies to get the water to the main ditch so it doesn’t flood out field and property.  Maintenance needs to be done from the main ditch all the way up to Brian’s and Clark’s.

Discussion was held on lack of action of the past Drainage Boards to maintain the ditch (Lateral 1) has created this issue.  There currently is no established ditch, no buffers, no corridors.  Continued discussion on the problem that this has created because of the culvert being lowered on Center Valley Road which was prior to this Board/

Van Eperen stated the water is coming across the field, there is a designed legal drain that goes across your field that has a legal buffers of 20 feet on both sides that also has a defined bottom to it, you claim you will lose income which you should not have been farming for all these years.  You have known it is mapped, you come to annual meetings every year, so you know it is there.  Did you intentionally fill it in, no.  Was it maintained, no.  Should have it been maintained, yes.  There hasn’t been funds to do the work.  Now there are funds available in most of the districts to do maintenance and work, which this Board is now doing.  The Drainage Board is only able to work on legal drains within the districts.  Individuals must get private drains to the legal drains.  A survey needs to get done to see where the water goes.  

Kyle Schmidt asked why tile is not allowed.  Van Eperen stated currently the approved DATCP specifications is a open ditch.  

Clark Schabo stated he has no problem the way it is right now but when you start pumping water from his property to my property that is a problem.  Wishart stated the Board has a responsibility and obligation to maintain a legal drain to meet their legal requirements.  They must take the steps they are required to do.  Nettekoven questioned if the Lateral is removed, the land still remains in the drainage district.  

Chapman reported that BT2 certified the lateral is due north 950’, the ditch bottom, .9% slope; due east 1500’, slope decreases .6%.  The profile does not show it going up hill.  That is what the record shows.  A public hearing was held.  That is when a property owner should have come forward to say there is no ditch here.  It can be modified by the Board.  This was done in 2001.  My suggestion would be for an engineer to do a calculation of the survey.  

If there is a private tile extension the Board needs to approve the tile connection to the legal drain.  If the tile connection is a new tile, the tile connection needs to be approved by the Board and DATCP.  

Kyle Schmidt asked what defines where the lateral starts.  Chapman said that can be determined by soil type, where the water is concentrated, low point, property owners, history.  Usually an engineer determines the best area based on cost estimates.  

Vander Heiden moved, seconded by Nettekoven to have Cedar Corporation survey and complete an assessment of the current alignment of Lateral 1 of Center Valley Drainage District and provide a recommendation to the Drainage Board.  Roll call:  5 aye.  Motion carried.

Van Asten moved, seconded by Nettekoven to adjourn at 2:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,


Nancy J. Christensen
Administrative Assistant


                  
      

